
 1 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

N.C. WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION 
July 14, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

1751 Varsity Drive 
NCWRC Conference Room, 5th Floor 

Raleigh, North Carolina 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER - Chairman John Litton Clark 
 
This meeting is being recorded as a public record and is audio streaming live at 
www.ncwildlife.org. As a courtesy to others please turn off all cell phones during the 
meeting.  
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Commissioner Wes Seegars 
 
 
INVOCATION -   Commissioner Dean Proctor 
 
 
RECOGNITION OF VISITORS 
 
 
MANDATORY ETHICS INQUIRY - North Carolina General Statute 138A-15(e) mandates 
that the Commission Chair shall remind all Commissioners of their duty to avoid conflicts of 
interest and appearances of conflict under this Chapter, and that the chair also inquire as to 
whether there is any known conflict of interest or appearance of conflict with respect to any 
matters coming before the Commission at this time.  It is the duty of each Commissioner who is 
aware of such personal conflict of interest or of an appearance of a conflict, to notify the Chair of 
the same. Chairman Clark 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Take action on the April 21, 2016 Wildlife Resources 
Commission meeting minutes as written in the exhibit and distributed to members (EXHIBIT A) 
 

http://www.ncwildlife.org/


 2 

ADMINISTRATION 
 
Financial Status Report - Receive a financial status report on the Wildlife Operating Fund and 
Wildlife Endowment Fund – Lindsey Riddick, Budget Analyst (EXHIBIT B) 
 
 
RECOGNITION OF 2016 NATIONAL FISHING AND BOATING WEEK PRIZE 
DRAWING WINNER - Present Lifetime Unified Sportsman License, donated by Russell 
Rhodes of Neuse Sport Shop, to prize winner Brooks Grady from fishing event he attended 
during the 2016 National Fishing and Boating Week – Chairman John Litton Clark 
 
Break for Photographs 
 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Boating Safety Committee Report – Ray Clifton, Chair 
 
Small Game and Wild Turkey Committee Report – Garry Spence, Chair 
 
Land Use and Access Committee Report – Tom Berry, Chair 
 
Education Committee Report – Tommy Fonville and Joe Budd, Co-Chairs 
 
Big Game/HNGES Joint Committee Report – Neal Hanks, Big Game Chair and  
Mark Craig, HNGES Chair 
 
 
AGENCY SPOTLIGHT – Building Bridges Through Collaborative Projects – Receive a 
presentation highlighting the collaboration between WRC, NC State Parks, EBCI, NCDA & CS, 
and Great Smoky Mountains National Park on the Morrow Mountain Deer Project – Dr. Maria 
Palamar, Wildlife Veterinarian 
 
 
 
 
INLAND FISHERIES DIVISION 
 
Fisheries Division Update - Receive an update on activities of the Inland Fisheries Division –
Christian Waters, Inland Fisheries Division Chief 
 
 
 
WILDLIFE EDUCATION DIVISION 
 
Wildlife Education Division Update – Receive an update on recent activities of the Wildlife 
Education Division – Kris Smith, Wildlife Education Division Chief 
 



 3 

 
 
 
WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT DIVISION 
 
Wildlife Management Division Update – Receive an update on the activities of the Wildlife 
Management Division – Dr. David Cobb, Wildlife Management Division Chief 
 
Rulemaking Request and Fiscal Note Review – Consider staff recommendation to publish 
Notice of Text in the NC Register and hold a public hearing, for proposed revisions to 15A 
NCAC 10B .0106, to require reporting of elk taken without a permit while in the act of 
depredation. Review and approve fiscal note for revisions to 15A NCAC 10B .0106 to require 
reporting of elk taken without a permit while in the act of depredation – David Cobb 
(EXHIBITS C-1, C-2) 
 
 
LAND AND WATER ACCESS SECTION 
 
Land Acquisitions and Property Matters 
 
Phase I Land Acquisitions - Consider approval for staff to work with State Property Office and 
funding partners to develop acquisition plans for the following properties – Isaac Harrold, Lands 
Program (EXHIBITS D-1, D-2, D-3, D-4, D-5, D-6) 

• Cunningham Tract -  Swain County 
• Hammond Tract – Randolph County 
• Juniper Bay LLC Tract – Brunswick County 
• Melton Tract – McDowell County 
• Shoe Heel Tract – Johnston County 
• Wood Tract – Jackson County 

 
Phase II Land Acquisitions - Consider final approval to proceed with acquisition of the 
following properties – Isaac Harrold (EXHIBITS E-1, E-2, E-3, E-4, E-5) 

• Dix Creek Tract – Haywood County 
• Hampstead Bypass Tract – Pender County 
• Hodgson Tract – Davie/Iredell County 
• Ward (Columbia Depot) Tracts – Tyrrell County 
• Williams-Silvers Tracts – Haywood County 

 
 
WATER SAFETY RULEMAKING 
 
Temporary Rulemaking – Taylor’s Creek No Wake Zone in Beaufort – Carteret County – 
Review public comments and consider adoption of temporary rulemaking to clarify and correct 
the description of the no wake zone in the waters of Taylor’s Creek, shore to shore, in Beaufort 
under 15A NCAC 10F .0330(a)(2) – Carteret County – Betsy Haywood, No Wake Zone 
Coordinator (EXHIBIT F) 
 



 4 

Rulemaking – No Wake Zone, Nantahala Lake – Macon County -  Consider final adoption of 
an extended no wake zone for the entire Lakes End Cove on Nantahala Lake in Macon County 
under 15A NCAC 10F .0366 (a)(1) – Betsy Haywood (EXHIBIT G)  
 
 
 
 
COMMENTS BY CHAIRMAN – John Litton Clark 
 
 
COMMENTS BY EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR – Gordon Myers 
 
 
ADJOURN 



































EXHIBIT C-1 
July 14, 2016 

 

 
 

Permanent rule-making for 15A NCAC 10B .0106  
Wildlife Management Division  

 
The proposed amendment to 15A NCAC 10B .0106 Wildlife Taken for Depredations will 
require anyone who takes a depredating elk without a permit to report that take to the 
Commission within 24 hours and anyone who takes an elk with a permit to report it on a form 
provided with the permit. 
 

Reports of elk taken in depredation situations will aid staff in monitoring the size and 
composition of North Carolina’s elk herd.  The elk population in North Carolina is small, 
consequently it is important for the Commission to document each depredation-related mortality 
to ensure the Commission has the most complete data possible to use when making management 
decisions. 
 
Statement of action: Staff recommends the Commission notice the following permanent 
amendment to 15A NCAC 10B .0106 for public comment and presentation it at one (1) public 
hearing: 
 
15A NCAC 10B .0106 WILDLIFE TAKEN FOR DEPREDATIONS 

(a)  Depredation permits allow the taking of undesirable or excess wildlife resources as described in Subparagraphs 
(1) and (2) of this Paragraph. Only employees of the Wildlife Resources Commission and Wildlife Damage Control 
Agents may issue depredation permits. Each permit shall be written on a form supplied by the Commission.  No permit 
is needed for the owner or lessee of a property to take wildlife while committing depredations on the property; however 
the manner of taking, disposition of dead wildlife, and reporting requirements as described in this Rule still apply.  
No permit shall be issued to take any endangered or threatened species of wildlife listed under 15A NCAC 10I, except 
alligators, by reason of depredations to property. Only the Executive Director may issue depredation permits for 
Special Concern species listed in 15A NCAC 10I .0105 and for alligators.  An individual may take an endangered or 
threatened species in immediate defense of his own life or of the lives of others without a permit.  Any endangered or 
threatened species that may constitute a demonstrable but non-immediate threat to human safety shall be reported to 
a federal or state wildlife enforcement officer, who, upon verification of the report, may take or remove the specimen 
as provided by 15A NCAC 10I .0102.  Depredation permits for other species shall be issued under the following 
conditions:  

(1) for taking wildlife that is or has been damaging or destroying property provided there is evidence 
of property damage. No permit may be issued for the taking of any migratory birds and other 
federally-protected animals unless a corresponding valid U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service depredation 
permit, if required, has been issued.  The permit shall name the species allowed to be taken and may 
contain limitations as to age, sex, or any other condition within the species so named. The permit 
shall be issued to a landholder or an authorized representative of a unit of local government for 

http://insidewrc.org/pg06_downloads/zip/NCWRC-Green-Logo.zip


depredations on public property; and the permit shall be used only by individuals named on the 
permit. 

(2) for taking of wildlife resources in circumstances of overabundance or when the wildlife resources 
present a danger to human safety.  Cities as defined in G.S. 160A-1(2) seeking such a depredation 
permit shall apply to the Executive Director using a form supplied by the Commission requesting 
the following information: 
(A) the name and location of the city; 
(B) the acreage of the affected property; 
(C) a map of the affected property; 
(D) the signature of an authorized city representative; 
(E) the nature of the overabundance or the threat to public safety; and  
(F) a description of previous actions taken by the city to ameliorate the problem. 

(b)  Wildlife Damage Control Agents:  Upon completion of a training course designed for the purpose of reviewing 
and updating information on wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques, and demonstration of a 
knowledge of wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques, an individual with no record of wildlife 
law violations may apply to the Wildlife Resources Commission (Commission) to become a Wildlife Damage Control 
Agent (WDCA). Those persons who demonstrate knowledge of wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling 
techniques by a passing score of 85 percent or better on a written examination provided by a representative of the 
Wildlife Resources Commission, in cooperation with the training course provider, shall be approved.  Those persons 
failing to obtain a passing score shall be given one chance for re-testing without re-taking the course.  Those persons 
approved as agents by the Commission may then issue depredation permits for depredation as defined in Subparagraph 
(a)(1) of this Rule to landholders and be listed as a second party to provide the control service.  WDCAs may not issue 
depredation permits for coyotes in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, Washington; big game animals; bats; 
or species listed as endangered, threatened, or special concern under 15A NCAC 10I .0103, .0104 and .0105 of this 
Chapter.  WDCAs shall report to the Wildlife Resources Commission the number and disposition of animals taken, 
by county, annually. Records shall be available for inspection by a Wildlife Enforcement officer at any time during 
normal business hours.  WDCA status shall be revoked at any time by the Executive Director when there is evidence 
of violations of wildlife laws, failure to report, or inhumane treatment of animals by the WDCA.  A WDCA may not 
charge for the permit, but may charge for his or her investigations and control services.  In order to maintain a 
knowledge of current laws, rules, and techniques, each WDCA shall renew his or her agent status every three years 
by showing proof of having attended at least one training course provided for the purpose of reviewing and updating 
information on wildlife laws, and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques within the previous 12 months or agency 
approved continuing education credits. 
(c)  Each depredation permit shall have an expiration date or time after which the depredation permit is no longer 
valid. The depredation permit authorizes possession of any wildlife resources taken under the permit and shall be 
retained as long as the wildlife resource is in the permittee's possession.  All individuals taking wildlife resources 
under the authority of a depredation permit are obligated to the conditions written on the permit and the requirements 
specified in this Rule. 
(d)  Manner of Taking: 

(1) Taking Without a Permit.  Wildlife taken without a permit while committing depredations to 
property may, during the open season on the species, be taken by the landholder by any lawful 
method.  During the closed season, such depredating wildlife may be taken without a permit only 
by the use of firearms or archery equipment as defined in 15A NCAC 10B .0116. 

(2) Taking With a Permit.  Wildlife taken under a depredation permit may be taken only by the method 
or methods authorized by the permit.  When trapping is authorized, in order to limit the taking to 
the intended purpose, the permit may specify a reasonable distance from the property sought to be 
protected, according to the particular circumstances, within which the traps shall be set.  The 
Executive Director or agent may also state in a permit authorizing trapping whether or not bait may 
be used and the type of bait, if any, that is authorized.  In addition to any trapping restrictions that 
may be contained in the permit, the method of trapping shall be in accordance with the requirements 
and restrictions imposed by G.S. 113-291.6 and other local laws passed by the General Assembly.  
No depredation permit shall authorize the use of poisons or pesticides in taking wildlife except in 
accordance with the provisions of the North Carolina Pesticide Law of 1971, G.S. 143, Article 52, 
the Structural Pest Control Act of 1955, G.S. 106, Article 4C, and G.S. 113, Article 22A.  No 
depredation permit shall authorize the taking of wildlife by any method by any landholder upon the 
lands of another except when the individual is listed as a second party on a depredation permit. 



(3) Intentional Wounding.  It is unlawful for any landholder, with or without a depredation permit, 
intentionally to wound a wild animal in a manner so as not to cause its immediate death as suddenly 
and humanely as the circumstances permit. 

(e)  Disposition of Wildlife Taken: 
(1) Generally.  Except as provided by Subparagraphs (e)(2) through (5) of this Paragraph, any wildlife 

killed without a permit while committing depredations shall be buried or otherwise disposed of in a 
safe and sanitary manner on the property. Wildlife killed under a depredation permit may be 
transported to an alternate disposal site if desired.  Anyone in possession of carcasses of animals 
being transported under a depredation permit shall have the depredation permit in his or her 
possession.  Except as provided by Subparagraphs of (e)(2) through (5) of this Rule, all wildlife 
killed under a depredation permit shall be buried or otherwise disposed of as stated on the permit. 

(2) Deer and feral swine.  The edible portions of feral swine and deer may be retained by the landholder 
for consumption but shall not be transported from the property where the depredations took place 
without a valid depredation permit. The landholder may give a second party the edible portions of 
the feral swine and deer taken under the depredation permit. The receiver of the edible portions shall 
hold a copy of the depredation permit.  The nonedible portions of any deer carcass, including head, 
hide, feet, and antlers, shall be disposed of as specified in Subparagraph (1) of this Paragraph or 
turned over to a wildlife enforcement officer for disposition.   

(3) Fox.  Any fox killed under a depredation permit may be disposed of as described in Subparagraph 
(1) of this Paragraph or, upon compliance with the fur tagging requirements of 15A NCAC 10B 
.0400, the carcass or pelt thereof may be sold to a licensed fur dealer. 

(4) Furbearing Animals.  The carcass or pelt of any furbearing animal killed during the open season for 
taking such furbearing animal for control of depredations to property, whether with or without a 
permit, may be sold to a licensed fur dealer provided that the person offering such carcass or pelt 
for sale has a valid hunting or trapping license; provided further that, bobcats and otters may only 
be sold upon compliance with any required fur tagging requirement set forth in 15A NCAC 10B 
.0400. 

(5) Animals Taken Alive.  Wild animals in the order Carnivora, armadillos, groundhogs, nutria, and 
beaver shall be humanely euthanized either at the site of capture or at a facility designed to humanely 
handle the euthanasia or released on the property where captured.  Feral swine shall be euthanized 
while still in the trap in accordance with G.S. 113-291.12.  For all other animals taken alive, the 
animal shall be euthanized or released on property with permission of the landowner.  When the 
relocation site is public property, written permission shall be obtained from an appropriate local, 
state, or federal official before any animal may be released.  Animals transported or held for 
euthanasia shall be euthanized within 12 hours of capture. Anyone in possession of live animals 
being transported for relocation or euthanasia under a depredation permit shall have the depredation 
permit in his or her possession. 

(f)  Reporting Requirements.  Any landholder who kills an alligator; a coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, 
Tyrrell, or Washington; deer; Canada goose; bear; elk; or wild turkey under a valid depredation permit shall report 
such kill on the form provided with the permit and mail the form upon the expiration date to the Wildlife Resources 
Commission.  Any landowner who kills a coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, and Washington 
shall report such kill as directed on the form provided with the depredation permit. The killing and method of 
disposition of every alligator; alligator and bear, or coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, or 
Washington Washington; bear; or elk taken without a permit shall be reported to the Wildlife Resources Commission 
within 24 hours following the time of such killing. 
 
History Note: Authority G.S. 113-134; 113-273; 113-274; 113-291.4; 113-291.6; 113-300.1; 113-300.2; 113-307; 

113-331; 113-333; 113-334(a); 113-337; 

Eff. February 1, 1976; 

Amended Eff. August 1, 2013; January 1, 2012; August 1 2010; July 1, 2010; May 1, 2008; August 

1, 2002; July 1, 1997; July 1, 1995; January 1, 1995; January 1, 1992; August 1, 1990. 

Temporary Amendment Eff. August 1, 2014 and shall remain in effect until amendments expire as 

specified in G.S. 150B-21.1(d) or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of North 

Carolina's court order number 2:13-CV-60-BOs signed on May 13, 2014 is rescinded, whichever 

date is earlier.  The court order is available at www.ncwildlife.org;  

Temporary Amendment Eff. February 27, 2015; Amended Eff. December 1, 2016;  May 1, 2016. 

http://www.ncwildlife.org/


 

1 
 

EXHIBIT C-2 
July 14, 2016 

 

 
 

Fiscal Note for Proposed Wildlife Management Rule Amendment for the  
Wildlife Resources Commission     

 
15A NCAC 10B .0106  Wildlife Taken For Depredations 

Agency Contact: Erica Garner 

 NC Wildlife Resources Commission 

 919-707-0014 

Impact: Local Funds:  No 

 State Funds:  Minimal 

 Private Impact: Minimal 

 Substantial Economic Impact:  Does not meet $1,000,000 threshold 

Authority: G.S. § 113 - 134 

For reasons which are outlined below, WRC believes that this rule change does not meet the 
criteria requiring a fiscal note pursuant to G.S. § 150B-21.4.  An analysis of the proposed change 
for the rule follows.   
 
BACKGROUND 

 

The wildlife resources of the State belong to the people of the State as a whole, including the 
enjoyment of these resources (G.S. § 113-131(a)). WRC is tasked with the conservation of 
wildlife resources of the State (G.S. § 143-239). This responsibility includes managing as 
equitably as possible the various competing interests regarding these resources, including the 
use and take of such resources (G.S. § 113-131.1(a)).  The statutes governing wildlife resources 
are found in Chapter 113, Subchapter IV of the General Statutes, and WRC has been granted 
rulemaking authority to implement the provisions of these statutes (G.S. § 113-134). 
 
As part of its mission, WRC conducts an annual review of its fish, wildlife, boating safety, and 
other regulations to determine whether such rules need to be adjusted in order to accomplish the 
objectives of: managing wildlife resources through a biologically sustainable harvest of such 
resources by hunters, trappers and anglers consistent with sound conservation objectives; 

 

http://insidewrc.org/pg06_downloads/zip/NCWRC-Green-Logo.zip


 

2 
 

ensuring the safety of the boating public; managing Commission-owned land for the 
conservation of wildlife resources and the enjoyment of the public; and implementing legislative 
directives. 
 
A summary of the proposed rule amendment is shown below, with the full text included in 
Appendix A. 
 
PROPOSED RULE CHANGE 15A NCAC 10B .0106 

Description and Justification 

Wildlife depredation refers to wildlife causing property damage. Depredating wildlife may be 
taken both with and without a permit under certain conditions. How one should dispose of the 
wildlife taken as a result of depredation depends on the species taken and whether or not a 
Depredation Permit was issued. 

The proposed amendment to the Rule will require anyone who takes a depredating elk without a 
permit to report that take to the Commission within 24 hours and anyone who takes an elk with a 
permit to report it on a form provided with the permit.  

The proposed change to this Rule is necessary to monitor the size and composition of North 
Carolina’s elk herd.  The elk population in North Carolina is very small, consequently it is 
important for the Commission to record each mortality to ensure the Commission has the most 
complete data possible to use when making management decisions.  Current estimates of the elk 
population are 150-160 elk total in the herd. Staff continues to work at developing a more 
rigorous population estimation technique.  At this population level, the mortality of individual 
elk is important to our efforts to monitor the long term viability of the population.  The elk range 
occurs primarily in a small portion of Haywood and Madison Counties.   

Fiscal Impact  

State Impact 

This rule amendment requires landowners to report depredating elk taken with or without a 
permit. As a direct result, staff will record the reports, which can be completed within several 
minutes per report. No additional staff action will be triggered by reports of elk taken for 
depredation. Approximately two depredation permits for elk were issued in the previous fiscal 
year. This rule amendment will have no impact on the number of depredation permits that will be 
issued. Due to the low number of previously issued permits and the small population of elk (150-
160), WRC anticipates that the number of elk taken with or without a depredation permit will be 
low and staff recording time will be minimal.   

Local Impact 

This rule has no local government impact as elk population management, law enforcement, and 
human-elk conflict resolution are the responsibility of the WRC. 

Private Impact 



 

3 
 

Private individuals who take a depredating elk will incur insignificant costs to report a kill by 
phone or mail. There are no penalties for taking a depredating elk without a permit if the take is 
in accordance with the law and reported as provided in the rule. 
 

APPENDIX A: PROPOSED RULE CHANGES 

15A NCAC 10B .0106 WILDLIFE TAKEN FOR DEPREDATIONS 

(a)  Depredation permits allow the taking of undesirable or excess wildlife resources as described in Subparagraphs 
(1) and (2) of this Paragraph. Only employees of the Wildlife Resources Commission and Wildlife Damage Control 
Agents may issue depredation permits. Each permit shall be written on a form supplied by the Commission.  No permit 
is needed for the owner or lessee of a property to take wildlife while committing depredations on the property; however 
the manner of taking, disposition of dead wildlife, and reporting requirements as described in this Rule still apply.  
No permit shall be issued to take any endangered or threatened species of wildlife listed under 15A NCAC 10I, except 
alligators, by reason of depredations to property. Only the Executive Director may issue depredation permits for 
Special Concern species listed in 15A NCAC 10I .0105 and for alligators.  An individual may take an endangered or 
threatened species in immediate defense of his own life or of the lives of others without a permit.  Any endangered or 
threatened species that may constitute a demonstrable but non-immediate threat to human safety shall be reported to 
a federal or state wildlife enforcement officer, who, upon verification of the report, may take or remove the specimen 
as provided by 15A NCAC 10I .0102.  Depredation permits for other species shall be issued under the following 
conditions:  

(1) for taking wildlife that is or has been damaging or destroying property provided there is evidence 
of property damage. No permit may be issued for the taking of any migratory birds and other 
federally-protected animals unless a corresponding valid U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service depredation 
permit, if required, has been issued.  The permit shall name the species allowed to be taken and may 
contain limitations as to age, sex, or any other condition within the species so named. The permit 
shall be issued to a landholder or an authorized representative of a unit of local government for 
depredations on public property; and the permit shall be used only by individuals named on the 
permit. 

(2) for taking of wildlife resources in circumstances of overabundance or when the wildlife resources 
present a danger to human safety.  Cities as defined in G.S. 160A-1(2) seeking such a depredation 
permit shall apply to the Executive Director using a form supplied by the Commission requesting 
the following information: 
(A) the name and location of the city; 
(B) the acreage of the affected property; 
(C) a map of the affected property; 
(D) the signature of an authorized city representative; 
(E) the nature of the overabundance or the threat to public safety; and  
(F) a description of previous actions taken by the city to ameliorate the problem. 

(b)  Wildlife Damage Control Agents:  Upon completion of a training course designed for the purpose of reviewing 
and updating information on wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques, and demonstration of a 
knowledge of wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques, an individual with no record of wildlife 
law violations may apply to the Wildlife Resources Commission (Commission) to become a Wildlife Damage Control 
Agent (WDCA). Those persons who demonstrate knowledge of wildlife laws and safe, humane wildlife handling 
techniques by a passing score of 85 percent or better on a written examination provided by a representative of the 
Wildlife Resources Commission, in cooperation with the training course provider, shall be approved.  Those persons 
failing to obtain a passing score shall be given one chance for re-testing without re-taking the course.  Those persons 
approved as agents by the Commission may then issue depredation permits for depredation as defined in Subparagraph 
(a)(1) of this Rule to landholders and be listed as a second party to provide the control service.  WDCAs may not issue 
depredation permits for coyotes in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, Washington; big game animals; bats; 
or species listed as endangered, threatened, or special concern under 15A NCAC 10I .0103, .0104 and .0105 of this 
Chapter.  WDCAs shall report to the Wildlife Resources Commission the number and disposition of animals taken, 
by county, annually. Records shall be available for inspection by a Wildlife Enforcement officer at any time during 
normal business hours.  WDCA status shall be revoked at any time by the Executive Director when there is evidence 
of violations of wildlife laws, failure to report, or inhumane treatment of animals by the WDCA.  A WDCA may not 



 

4 
 

charge for the permit, but may charge for his or her investigations and control services.  In order to maintain a 
knowledge of current laws, rules, and techniques, each WDCA shall renew his or her agent status every three years 
by showing proof of having attended at least one training course provided for the purpose of reviewing and updating 
information on wildlife laws, and safe, humane wildlife handling techniques within the previous 12 months or agency 
approved continuing education credits. 
(c)  Each depredation permit shall have an expiration date or time after which the depredation permit is no longer 
valid. The depredation permit authorizes possession of any wildlife resources taken under the permit and shall be 
retained as long as the wildlife resource is in the permittee's possession.  All individuals taking wildlife resources 
under the authority of a depredation permit are obligated to the conditions written on the permit and the requirements 
specified in this Rule. 
(d)  Manner of Taking: 

(1) Taking Without a Permit.  Wildlife taken without a permit while committing depredations to 
property may, during the open season on the species, be taken by the landholder by any lawful 
method.  During the closed season, such depredating wildlife may be taken without a permit only 
by the use of firearms or archery equipment as defined in 15A NCAC 10B .0116. 

(2) Taking With a Permit.  Wildlife taken under a depredation permit may be taken only by the method 
or methods authorized by the permit.  When trapping is authorized, in order to limit the taking to 
the intended purpose, the permit may specify a reasonable distance from the property sought to be 
protected, according to the particular circumstances, within which the traps shall be set.  The 
Executive Director or agent may also state in a permit authorizing trapping whether or not bait may 
be used and the type of bait, if any, that is authorized.  In addition to any trapping restrictions that 
may be contained in the permit, the method of trapping shall be in accordance with the requirements 
and restrictions imposed by G.S. 113-291.6 and other local laws passed by the General Assembly.  
No depredation permit shall authorize the use of poisons or pesticides in taking wildlife except in 
accordance with the provisions of the North Carolina Pesticide Law of 1971, G.S. 143, Article 52, 
the Structural Pest Control Act of 1955, G.S. 106, Article 4C, and G.S. 113, Article 22A.  No 
depredation permit shall authorize the taking of wildlife by any method by any landholder upon the 
lands of another except when the individual is listed as a second party on a depredation permit. 

(3) Intentional Wounding.  It is unlawful for any landholder, with or without a depredation permit, 
intentionally to wound a wild animal in a manner so as not to cause its immediate death as suddenly 
and humanely as the circumstances permit. 

(e)  Disposition of Wildlife Taken: 
(1) Generally.  Except as provided by Subparagraphs (e)(2) through (5) of this Paragraph, any wildlife 

killed without a permit while committing depredations shall be buried or otherwise disposed of in a 
safe and sanitary manner on the property. Wildlife killed under a depredation permit may be 
transported to an alternate disposal site if desired.  Anyone in possession of carcasses of animals 
being transported under a depredation permit shall have the depredation permit in his or her 
possession.  Except as provided by Subparagraphs of (e)(2) through (5) of this Rule, all wildlife 
killed under a depredation permit shall be buried or otherwise disposed of as stated on the permit. 

(2) Deer and feral swine.  The edible portions of feral swine and deer may be retained by the landholder 
for consumption but shall not be transported from the property where the depredations took place 
without a valid depredation permit. The landholder may give a second party the edible portions of 
the feral swine and deer taken under the depredation permit. The receiver of the edible portions shall 
hold a copy of the depredation permit.  The nonedible portions of any deer carcass, including head, 
hide, feet, and antlers, shall be disposed of as specified in Subparagraph (1) of this Paragraph or 
turned over to a wildlife enforcement officer for disposition.   

(3) Fox.  Any fox killed under a depredation permit may be disposed of as described in Subparagraph 
(1) of this Paragraph or, upon compliance with the fur tagging requirements of 15A NCAC 10B 
.0400, the carcass or pelt thereof may be sold to a licensed fur dealer. 

(4) Furbearing Animals.  The carcass or pelt of any furbearing animal killed during the open season for 
taking such furbearing animal for control of depredations to property, whether with or without a 
permit, may be sold to a licensed fur dealer provided that the person offering such carcass or pelt 
for sale has a valid hunting or trapping license; provided further that, bobcats and otters may only 
be sold upon compliance with any required fur tagging requirement set forth in 15A NCAC 10B 
.0400. 



 

5 
 

(5) Animals Taken Alive.  Wild animals in the order Carnivora, armadillos, groundhogs, nutria, and 
beaver shall be humanely euthanized either at the site of capture or at a facility designed to humanely 
handle the euthanasia or released on the property where captured.  Feral swine shall be euthanized 
while still in the trap in accordance with G.S. 113-291.12.  For all other animals taken alive, the 
animal shall be euthanized or released on property with permission of the landowner.  When the 
relocation site is public property, written permission shall be obtained from an appropriate local, 
state, or federal official before any animal may be released.  Animals transported or held for 
euthanasia shall be euthanized within 12 hours of capture. Anyone in possession of live animals 
being transported for relocation or euthanasia under a depredation permit shall have the depredation 
permit in his or her possession. 

(f)  Reporting Requirements.  Any landholder who kills an alligator; a coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, 
Tyrrell, or Washington; deer; Canada goose; bear; elk; or wild turkey under a valid depredation permit shall report 
such kill on the form provided with the permit and mail the form upon the expiration date to the Wildlife Resources 
Commission.  Any landowner who kills a coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, and Washington 
shall report such kill as directed on the form provided with the depredation permit. The killing and method of 
disposition of every alligator; alligator and bear, or coyote in the counties of Beaufort, Dare, Hyde, Tyrrell, or 
Washington Washington; bear; or elk taken without a permit shall be reported to the Wildlife Resources Commission 
within 24 hours following the time of such killing. 
 
History Note: Authority G.S. 113-134; 113-273; 113-274; 113-291.4; 113-291.6; 113-300.1; 113-300.2; 113-307; 

113-331; 113-333; 113-334(a); 113-337; 

Eff. February 1, 1976; 

Amended Eff. August 1, 2013; January 1, 2012; August 1 2010; July 1, 2010; May 1, 2008; August 

1, 2002; July 1, 1997; July 1, 1995; January 1, 1995; January 1, 1992; August 1, 1990. 

Temporary Amendment Eff. August 1, 2014 and shall remain in effect until amendments expire as 

specified in G.S. 150B-21.1(d) or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of North 

Carolina's court order number 2:13-CV-60-BOs signed on May 13, 2014 is rescinded, whichever 

date is earlier.  The court order is available at www.ncwildlife.org; 

Temporary Amendment Eff. February 27, 2015; 

Amended Eff. May 1, 2016. 

 



EXHIBIT D-1 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/David Stewart  
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
   
Tract Name:  Cunningham (Indian Grave Gap).  Parcel Number 6559-67-0713-000. 
 
Acreage:  38 acres 
 
County:  Swain 
 
Estimated Value:  Asking Price $126,050.  Appraised Value (Aug. 2015) $151,500.   
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Mainspring Conservation Trust 
 

Phone:  (828) 524-2711 
 
Address:  557 East Main Street Franklin NC 28734 
               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF 

☒ OTHER (explain): Pittman Robertson (PR) Land Acquisition Grant.  
Mainspring is willing to sell WRC this tract at approximately 17% below 
appraised value to help offset the PR requirement for 25% non-federal match.  

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of this property is 
significant as part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region. 
WRC ownership of the tract will increase conservation ownership of properties in the immediate 
area such as the Nantahala National Forest and properties owned by Mainspring Conservation 
Trust, formerly the Land Trust for the Little Tennessee (LTLT).   In a broader sense, WRC 
ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by increasing 
connectivity of lands in conservation ownership such as Nantahala National Forest, Great Smoky 
Mountains National Park, Needmore Game Land (WRC holdings), Mainspring lands and various 
private holdings that are in conservation ownership or have conservation easements that are 
located in the vicinity.  WRC ownership will help reduce land fragmentation as well.  
 
Management objectives will include restoring or maintaining the oak forest and cove forest 
priority wildlife habitats that are located on the tract.  WRC ownership would ensure these 
habitats are protected and managed for wildlife conservation and public use in perpetuity.  WRC 
ownership may also provide opportunities to create some early successional habitat (ESH),  
 



 
 
 
which is a priority wildlife habitat.  Resent logging activity on the tract will assist in the ESH 
creation and enhancement.   
 
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, fishing, hiking, bird watching, 
photography, and general nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife 
habitats are managed for or maintained. The majority of the tract is forested with Appalachian 
oak and Appalachian cove forests predominant.  Common wildlife species found on the tract 
include wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse as well as various 
songbirds, salamanders, and small mammals.  The tract is adjacent to existing Needmore Game 
Land.  
 

Additional Comments:  WRC ownership of this tract will also improve public access to existing 
WRC game lands.  Access to Needmore Game Land from Highway 28 is limited.  Highway 28 
runs through this tract.  In addition to the highway running through the property, logging activity 
that has taken place on the property resulted in a creation of a nice, flat logging deck just below 
the highway.  This deck will provide an excellent opportunity to create a public parking area to 
enhance access to existing game land.  Skid trails leading from the deck into the game land will 
also enhance access.           
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
3,000 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot ($3,750).  Another 0.75 miles of boundary 
adjoining US Forest Service (existing game land) will be established by WRC staff at $200/mi. 
($150).  Estimates also include constructing one parking area at approximately $10,000 to 
enhance public access.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is $13,900. 
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Nantahala)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No  
 
 
 

 

30 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Cunningham (Needmore GL – Swain Co.) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

N/A 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

N/A 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

N/A 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander

Plethodon shermani Red-legged Salamander SR

Desmognathus aeneus Seepage Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher

Corvus corax Common Raven

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet

Vermivora pinus Blue-winged Warbler SR

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake

Pituophis melanoleucus melanoleucus Northern Pine Snake SC

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake

Cunningham Tract (Needmore GL - Swain County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬ «28Needmore
Rd

Brush Creek Rd

Marr Creek Rd

Sheila Ln

Breeze Woo
d DrDean Falls Trl

Lower Needm
ore

Rd

Arve y
R

d

High
Lonesom

e
Rd

Bull Hollo w Rd

Lic
klo

g Rd Lower Needm
ore

R
d

S heila Ln

Lower Needmore Rd Ut

Brush Creek

Ma
rr 

Br
an

ch

Little Tennessee River(At norm pool elev. 1708 feet Msl)

Lic
klog

 Creek

Rattl
esn

ake
 Creek

Long Branch

Ledb
etter

 Branch

Lo
ud

erm
ilk

 Cr
eek

Sim
on 

Bra
nch

Ut

Ut

UtUt

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut Ut

Ut

_̂

Cunningham Tract
Needmore GL
Swain County 

38 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Nantahala GL

Needmore GL

Swain
County

Cunningham Tract

Macon County
Swain County



¬« 28

Ut

Brush Creek

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

Cunningham Tract
Needmore GL
Swain County 

38 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 1,000500 Feet

Needmore GL

Swain
County

Cunningham Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT D-2 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Brooke Massa 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Hammond Tract (PIN 7647374310) 
 
Acreage:  275.10 acres 
 
County:  Randolph 
 
Estimated Value:  $900,000 ($3,272/ac) Asking Price 

$1,059,430 ($3,851/ac) Tax Value 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Crystal Cockman,  

   c/o The Land Trust for Central North Carolina 
204 East Innes Street, Suite 280 
Salisbury, NC 28144 

 

Phone:   (704) 647-0302   
 

Email:  crystal@landtrustcnc.org 
     
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest    ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF  

☒ OTHER:  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, WRC 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Hammond Property is a 275-acre 
property predominantly composed of hardwoods and fields. The riparian buffer portion is still in 
natural hardwood community, but a large portion of the timber was select-harvested a few years 
ago. There remains some large hardwoods and potential exists here for creation of a nice oak-
hickory savanna.  It is adjacent to the Uwharrie National Forest and shares approximately 4,133’ 
of common boundary with it.  On this adjacent block of the Uwharrie National Forest, the Kies 
Mountains Hardwoods Natural Heritage Natural Area of ‘High’ value is present.  The northern 
boundary of the property includes 6,300’ of the South Prong of the Little River, which is a 
designated Natural Heritage Natural Area of ‘Very High’ value and provides habitat for the  

mailto:crystal@landtrustcnc.org


 

 

 
 
Eastern creekshell (State Rare).  This stream provides good opportunities for recreation.  
Portions of two other unnamed streams also run through the property.  This property also has 
documented occurrences of four-toed salamander and timber rattlesnake.  In addition, this 
property helps build habitat connectivity between protected lands along the Little River.     
 
Additional Comments:  Additional Comments:  Tract is easily accessed by existing US Forest 
Service lands and state maintained roads, with approximately 1,640’ of road frontage on High 
Pines Church Road. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
4,000 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot ($5,000).  Another 1.5 miles of boundary along the 
road and river will be established by WRC staff at $135/mi. ($202.50).  Estimates also include 
constructing 2 gates ($2,000) and one parking area ($10,000).  Total estimate of five-year 
expenditures is $17,202.50.   
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Uwharrie)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

  

27 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Hammond (Uwharrie GL - Randolph County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
5 
 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
3 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
4 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
NA 

 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
NA 

 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 
1 

  
 

 

  27 
  TOTAL SCORE  
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander W4

Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser W3

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel W1,W5

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow W1,W5

Spiza americana Dickcissel W3,W5

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole W2

MAMMALS

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat W2

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse W2

REPTILES

Apalone spinifera aspera Gulf Coast Spiny Softshell W2

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake W1,W5

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake W1,W5

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake W2

Hsmmonf Tract (Randolph) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬«13
4

¬«73

¬« 220

¬«159

¬« 73

§̈¦73
§̈¦73

£¤220

H
ig

h

Pine Chu
rc

h
Rd

Pi
sg

ah
Cove

re
d

Brid
ge Rd

Tall Pine St

N
ew

 H
op

e 
C

hu
rc

h 
R

d 
 

Gray O
wl R

d  

M

ountai
n Cree

k
R

d

Forest Hills Dr  

Fulton Rd
M

er
ed

ith
Ctry

Rd

Honey Locust Rd  

Cloverfield Rd

Fo
gg

y Mtn Rd

Nath
an

s T
rl  

Voncannon Farm Rd  

Staleys Farm Rd  

Na
ss

au
 T

rl 
 

C
ol

e 
M

tn
 R

d 
 

Drum St  

R
id

ge
ba

ck
 R

d 
 

Buck Ford Rd  

Stout Farm Rd  

Wilson Ln  

Sco
tt M

tn Rd Ext 
 

Qu
ail

 R
oo

st 
Dr

  

Ne
w

Ho
pe

C
hu

rc
h

Rd

Pi
sg

ah
Co

ve
red Bridge R d

_̂

Hammond Tract
Uwharrie Game Land

Randolph County 
275 Acres

/June 23, 2016 0 21 Miles

Uwharrie GL

Hammond Tract

Randolph
County



High
 P

ine
 C

hu
rch

 R
d  

Ut

Little River

South Prong Little River

Lit
tle

 Ri
verUt

South Prong Little River

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

Hammond Tract
Uwharrie Game Land

Randolph County 
275 Acres

/June 23, 2016 0 2,0001,000 Feet

Uwharrie GL

Hammond Tract

Randolph
County



 

 

EXHIBIT D-3 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes  
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Juniper Bay LLC (Parcel ID: 12500047) 
 
Acreage:  992 + 
 
County:  Brunswick 
 
Estimated Value: $ 3,868,059 ($3,900/ac asking)  
                              $ 2,033,210 ($2,050/ac tax value) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Tom Percival 
 

Phone:  (O) 910-738-7170  www.landsofthecarolinas.com 
  (C) 910-734-6699 
 
 
Address: Percival Land and Timber Consultant 
     PO Box 2232 
     Lumberton, NC 28359                          
       
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest   ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☒ CWMTF    

      ☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant and WRC  
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Property lies just east of Bolivia and 
consists of 992 acres of forested woodlands that support young loblolly pine plantations, thinned 
25-30-year-old loblolly plantations, one clearcut, natural pine stands and riparian hardwoods. In 
addition, a large power line ROW runs through the center of the property.  The holding supports 
approximately 5 miles of dirt-based access roads which are in fair to good shape.  These roads 
provide good access on the tract for use and management.  The tract supports habitat for game 
species such as whitetail deer, black bear, wild turkey, gray and fox squirrel.  The hardwood 
riparian area provides habitat needs for Neotropical migrants and other hardwood dependent bird 
species, in addition to furbearers, reptiles and amphibians. 
 

http://www.landsofthecarolinas.com/


 

 

 
 
The site is severely fire suppressed and needs to have prescribe fire introduced on a regular basis.  
However, it remains unclear how long burning can be used in the future due to impacts from 
future development.  Prior to the economic downturn, this site was scheduled to be developed.  
Over 1,600 single and multiple family units were platted for development on this site. 
 
Based upon data found in the NC Conservation Planning Tool, 67% of Juniper Bay LLC 
Biodiversity index ranked within the range of 3-6 out of 10 (1- low-10 high values). 
(0-3- 32%, 3-6-67% and 6-10-.00%).  The Biodiversity/Wildlife Habitat Index prioritizes aquatic 
and terrestrial habitat, landscape function and connectivity.  Areas that support this level of 
species richness should be targeted for protection. 
 
 
Additional Comments: None. 
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (New) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
This site would make an excellent Still Hunting Only game land for deer and bear.  Given the 
adjacent land use and its close proximity to Wilmington, still hunting use is   anticipated to be 
high. 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

25 of 30 



 

 

 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Juniper Bay LLC (Brunswick County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

3 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

4 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

4 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

No 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

No 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

No 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 25 
     

 
 
  



 

 

 

 
 
 
  

Juniper Bay LLC-Brunswick County

5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs 

5-Year 5 Year

Description Quantity Unit Unit/Cost Total

Maintain Access Road- 5 miles Annually 25 mi 2,500.00$  62,500.00$    

Prescribe Burning  335 ac -Annually 1675 ac 30.00$        50,250.00$    

Establish Firebreaks-10 mi- Annually 50 mi 200.00$      10,000.00$    

Establish Gates-10 10 ea 1,000.00$  10,000.00$    

Maintain Gates- 10- Annually 40 ea 100.00$      4,000.00$      

Boundary Establishment 10 mi 135.00$      1,350.00$      

Boundary Maintenance- yr 4- 10 miles 10 mi 135.00$      1,350.00$      

Reforestation-27 acres 27 ac 270.00$      7,290.00$      

Total 146,740.00$ 

5-Year Anticipated Revenue

No income anticipated in years 1-5 -$                

Total -$                



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Wille
t B

ran
ch

Gap Branch

Middle Swamp

Swain Branch
£¤17

!(87

Boiling Spring Lakes

Bo
liv

ia

_̂

Juniper Bay LLC Tract
Brunswick County

992 Acres

/June 22, 2016 0 1 20.5 Miles

Brunswick
County

Juniper Bay LLC Tract



Willet Branch

£¤17

!(87

B
ol

iv
ia

Boiling Spring Lakes
NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Juniper Bay LLC Tract
Brunswick County

992 Acres

/June 22, 2016 0 1,500 3,000750 Feet

Brunswick
County

Juniper Bay LLC Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT D-4 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/Kip Hollifield 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Melton Tract (Parcel ID 1657-49-6782) 
 
Acreage:  93.41 acres 
 
County:  McDowell 
 
Estimated Value:  $93,410 (bargain sale, $1000/acre) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Andrew Kota, c/o Foothills Conservancy of N.C. 

  akota@foothillsconservancy.org 
 
Address:  P.O. Box 3023 
Morganton, NC 28680 
 

Phone: 828-437-9930 (office)   
828-403-7121 (mobile) 
      
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF  

☒ OTHER:  Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant, with donated value 
of property expected to meet 25% non-federal match requirement 

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of the Melton Tract will 
solidify WRC ownership in the portion of South Mountains GL where McDowell and Burke 
counties adjoin near U.S. Hwy. 64 and provide an additional public access location to the game 
land in this area. 
 
The tract contains the headwaters of Cane Creek and is predominately composed of Appalachian 
oak forest.  Management objectives will include restoring or maintaining the oak forest priority 
wildlife habitat that is located on the tract.  Common wildlife species found on the tract include 
wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, raccoon, and gray squirrel.   Priority species likely 
found on the tract as either permanent residents or transients include:  South Mountain gray- 

mailto:akota@foothillsconservancy.org


 

 

 
 
 
cheeked salamander (Plethodon meridianus), timber rattlesnake (Crotalus horridus), Eastern box 
turtle (Terapene carolina), northern long-eared bat (Myotis septentrionalis), wood thrush 
(Hylocichla mustelina), Eastern wood-peewee (Contopus virens), and hooded warbler 
(Setophaga citrina).   
 
A Revolutionary War battle likely occurred on the property (Battle of Cane Creek) and the 
Overmountain Victory National Historic Trail (trail not developed) also crosses the property.   
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and 
general nature study.    
 
Additional Comments:  Additional Comments:  The tract contains two old houses, a metal 
storage shed, and a garage.  These structures are of no value or benefit to WRC.  Foothills 
Conservancy will contact the local volunteer fire department and have the structures burned.  
WRC will dispose of any remaining debris after taking ownership of the property.       
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
3,220 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot, and constructing one parking area at 
approximately $10,000 to enhance public access.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is 
$14,025.   
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (South Mountains) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
 
 

  

29 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Melton (South Mountains GL - McDowell County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  4 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 29 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon meridianus South Mountain Gray-cheeked Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Melton Tract (McDowell County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬«6
4

¬«226

£¤64

Bollinger G
ap St

Bill Deck Rd

Dairy Rd

Fortune Rd

Ut

Cane
 Cree

k

Magazine Branch

Ha
rdb

arg
in 

Br
an

ch

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut
Ut

_̂

McDowell
County

Melton Tract
South Mountains GL

McDowell & Burke Counties 
93 Acres

/June 19, 2016 0 0.50.25 Miles

South Mountains GL

Melton Tract

Burke 
County

Rutherford
County



¬«6
4

£¤64

Fortune Rd

Bill D
eck 

Rd

Ut

Cane
 Cree

k

Ut

Ut

Ut

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

McDowell
County

Melton Tract
South Mountains GL

McDowell County 
93 Acres

/June 19, 2016 0 1,000500 Feet

South Mountains GL

Melton Tract

Burke 
County

Rutherford
County



EXHIBIT D-5 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Todd Ewing 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
   
Tract Name:  Shoe Heel Tract (Parcel ID Number 263700-48-7011) 
 
Acreage:  63.8  
 
County:  Johnston 
 
Estimated Value:  $245,000     
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Casey and Company Realty, LLC 
 

Phone:  (336)-838-5766 
 
Address:  310 E. Main Street, Wilkesboro, NC 28697 
               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF 

☒ OTHER (explain):  Tract is eligible for funding through the North Carolina 
and Virginia River and Waters Program (Duke Energy Coal Ash Settlement 
Funds)  

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  This property is located on the Little 
River in the Neuse River basin.  Approximately 36 acres of thinned loblolly pine with the 
remainder in hardwood.  Acquisition of this tract will help protect the federally-listed Tar River 
Spinymussel, and numerous other Wildlife Action Plan priority species including the Yellow 
Lance, Carolina Madtom, and Atlantic Pigtoe which have been petitioned for federal listing.  It 
contains 4,500 feet of frontage on Little River.  This site can also serve as a potential 
augmentation site for many of these species.   
 

Additional Comments:  Tract has excellent access with 1,500 feet of paved state road frontage 
on Micro Road.   
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
2,280 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot ($2,850).  Another 1.1 miles of boundary 
adjoining the river and state road will be established by WRC staff at $135/mi. ($148.50).  Total 
estimate of five-year expenditures is $2,998.50. 
 



 

 

 

Program Potential: ☒ Game Land   ☒ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☒ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 

 

25 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Shoe Heel Tract (Johnston County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

1 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

4 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

No 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

Yes 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 25 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Eurycea quadridigitata Dwarf Salamander SC

Stereochilus marginatus Many-lined Salamander  

Necturus lewisi Neuse River Waterdog SC

Siren lacertina Greater Siren  

Bufo quercicus Oak Toad SR

Hyla andersonii Pine Barrens Treefrog SR

Pseudacris brimleyi Brimley's Chorus Frog  

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Ixobrychus exilis Least Bittern SC

Ictinia mississippiensis Mississippi Kite  

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Picoides borealis Red-cockaded Woodpecker LE E

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

MAMMALS

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Sciurus niger Eastern Fox Squirrel SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Clemmys guttata Spotted Turtle  

Kinosternon baurii Striped Mud Turtle  

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Farancia erytrogramma Rainbow Snake  

Heterodon simus Southern Hognose Snake SC

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Shoe Heel Tract (Johnston County) - Priority Species



           

            2015 North Carolina Wildlife Action Plan 

 



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

O
ld Beulah Rd

M
ic

ro
 R

d

Shoeheel Rd

W
oo

dr
uf

f R
d

G
ar

ne
r R

d

Hale
s Rd

M
oo

re
 R

d
Bluegrass Rd

Iv
ey

D
r

Ab
ed

ne
go

 R
d

Jodies Ln

Holl
y L

n

Hatcher Rd

Ut

Little River (Tarpleys Pond)

Long Branch

Little River (Tarpleys Pond)

Little River (Tarpleys Pond)

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Little River (Tarpleys Pond)

_̂

§̈¦95

§̈¦40
§̈¦95

§̈¦40

Shoe Heel Tract
Johnson County 

63.8 Acres

/June 26, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Shoe Heel Tract

Johnson
County



Micr
o R

d

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

§̈¦95

§̈¦40
§̈¦95

§̈¦40

Shoe Heel Tract
Johnson County 

63.8 Acres

/June 26, 2016 0 1,000500 Feet

Shoe Heel Tract

Johnson
County



EXHIBIT D-6 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton/David Stewart  
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
   
Tract Name:  Wood Tract (Parcel Number 8506-34-0953) 
 
Acreage:  308 acres 
 
County:  Jackson 
 
Estimated Value:  $1.4 Million (Appraised in Dec 2015).  $832,800 is asking price.     
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Mainspring Conservation Trust 
 

Phone:  (828) 524-2711 
 
Address:  557 East Main Street Franklin NC 28734 
               
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF 

☒ OTHER (explain): Pittman Robertson (PR) Land Acquisition Grant.  
Mainspring is willing to sell WRC this tract at approximately 40% below 
appraised value, which more than satisfies the PR requirement for 25% non-
federal match.  

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  Acquisition of this property is 
significant as part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region. 
WRC ownership of the tract will increase conservation ownership of properties in the immediate 
area such as the Pisgah and Nantahala National Forest, and properties owned by Mainspring 
Conservation Trust, formerly the Land Trust for the Little Tennessee (LTLT).   In a broader 
sense, WRC ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by 
increasing connectivity of lands in conservation ownership such as Pisgah and Nantahala 
National Forest, Great Smoky Mountains National Park, Needmore Game Land and Cold 
Mountain Game Land (WRC holdings), Mainspring lands and various private holdings that are 
in conservation ownership or have conservation easements that are located in the vicinity.  WRC 
ownership will help reduce land fragmentation as well.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
Management objectives will include restoring or maintaining priority wildlife habitats that are 
located on the tract, as well as creating and maintaining additional early successional habitats 
(ESH).  Currently there are eight acres of open pasture that could be restored/enhanced into 
important early successional habitats.  There are also nearly two acres of power line right of way 
that has some important shrub/scrub early successional habitats.  Other important habitats 
include five acres of riparian habitats and five acres of Appalachian Hemlock/Hardwood Forest.  
The majority of this tract consists of Southern Appalachian Oak Forest.  WRC ownership will 
ensure these habitats are protected and managed for wildlife conservation and public use in 
perpetuity.  Resent logging activity on the tract may assist in the ESH creation and/or 
enhancement.  Elevations range from 3150 feet to 3950 and the tract is within a Golden-Wing 
Warbler focal area.  The open fields and logging activities will assist in creating good Golden-
Wing habitat.   
 
Public recreational opportunities will include hunting, fishing, hiking, bird watching, 
photography, and general nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife 
habitats are managed for or maintained. Common wildlife species found on the tract include wild 
turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse as well as various songbirds, 
salamanders, and small mammals.  See attached table for potential priority nongame species.  
 

Additional Comments:  The Wood Tract connects two large blocks of USFS land.  This is not 
only important for public access, but also provides an important wildlife corridor.  Also, 
Highway 281 runs through the middle of the tract, providing easy public access directly from a 
major highway.   
 
There is potential funding available through the US Fish and Wildlife Service, Neotropical 
Migratory Bird Conservation Act to assist in creating/enhancing Golden-Winged Warbler habitat 
on this tract, since the tract lies in an Appalachian Mountain Joint Ventures focal area. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
13,472 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot ($16,840).  Another 0.75 miles of boundary 
adjoining US Forest Service (existing game land) will be established by WRC staff at $200/mi. 
($150).  Estimates also include constructing one parking area at approximately $10,000 to 
enhance public access.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is $43,830. 
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Nantahala)  ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 

 

30 of 30 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Wood Tract (Nantahala GL – Jackson County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

N/A 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

N/A 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

N/A 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Aneides aeneus Green Salamander E

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Desmognathus santeetlah Santeetlah Dusky Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora pinus Blue-winged Warbler SR

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Wood Tract (Jackson County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

¬«28
1

W
olf Pen Rd

Gra
ys

Rid

ge Rd

V
as

s

Owen Rd

Ned
dy

Mtn
Rd

H

erford Dr

O

ld Mill Rd

State
Roa

d 11
84

Canada Rd

O
ld

M
ill

R
d

Ut

Nedd
ie C

ree
k

Sols Creek

Wo
lf C

ree
k

Long Branch

Flat Creek

Ut

Ut

UtUt

Ut

Ut

Ut

_̂

Wood Tract
Nantahala GL

Jackson County 
308 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Nantahala GL

Wood Tract

Jackson
County

Wolf
 Cr

ee
k L

ak
e

Tuckaseegee

River



¬«28
1

Wolf Pen Rd

Grays Ridge Rd

Ut

Neddie C
reek

Ut

Ut

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂

Wood Tract
Nantahala GL

Jackson County 
308 Acres

/June 24, 2016 0 2,0001,000 Feet

Nantahala GL

Wood Tract

Jackson
County



 

 

EXHIBIT E-1 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  February 11, 2016  

 

Tract:  Dix Creek Tract; Haywood County, 160.971 Acres  
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  $ 456,000 
 
Total Cost:      $ 456,000 ($ 2,832/Acre) 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 
Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
*SAHC 

 
Mike Moore  

 
Unknown 

 
$ 757,000 ($ 4,702Acre) 

 
 *Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy 

 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☒ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  

Additional Comments:  Purchase price is approximately 40% less than appraised value, which satisfies 
the PR requirement for 25% non-federal matching funds.  
 

$ 11,596 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Dix Creek 

  
Boundary 
Establishment 
(Contract Survey) 6,477 ft. $1.25                           $8,096    

      

 

Boundary 
Establishment  
(WRC Staff) 2 mi $250 $500 

      

 

Install gate to 
control vehicular 
access 2 ea. $1,000 $2,000 

 
 
Develop parking area  1 ea. $1,000 $1,000 

      

       

  Total       $11,596.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
     

      

      

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

  
Dix Creek  NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

       
 



  
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  David Stewart  
 

Date First Presented to WRC:  February 11, 2016     
   
Tract Name:  Dix Creek (PIN: 8643-61-4955) 
 
Acreage:   161 
 
County:  Haywood 
 
Estimated Value:  $456,000 Asking Price 
 
Property Owner or Representative:     130 of Chatham 

c/o Carl Silverstein, Executive Director 
Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy 

  
Phone:  (828) 253-0095 x 202 
 
Address:   34 Wall Street, Suite 502, Asheville, NC  28801                                 
               
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No 
Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

☒ OTHER (explain): Pittman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant with 25% 
match from Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy. 

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The property is located in Haywood 
County, approximately 6 miles east-southeast of Waynesville and 6 miles south-southwest 
Candler.  Tract is located directly adjacent to Cold Mountain Game Land and the Shining Rock 
Wilderness Area of Pisgah National Forest.  It is accessed via U.S Highway 276 to Dix Creek 
Rd. (SR1106).  The property is listed in the Haywood County Register of Deeds under Deed 
book 630 and Page 1423. Elevations on the property range from a low of just over 3900 feet 
along the northern line, to a high of about 5500 feet in the southernmost corner. The property 
consists of a series of small stream valleys alternating with side ridges.  Both the valleys and the 
ridges cut through the property in a generally northwest to southeast direction.  The main branch 
of Dix Creek extends roughly to the center of the property. With the exception of the stream 
valleys, the majority of the landmass is convex in form.  The aspect of the property is 
predominantly north to west.  Degree of slope inclination varies greatly.  The ridgetops and  



 
stream bottoms are flat to rolling, while side slopes commonly exceed 70% slope, especially in 
the southern half of the property.  A notable boulderfield occupies a large area in the 
southern half of the property. The property is fully forested with several species of trees present. 
Some of the most prominent species include ash, basswood, beech, black birch, black 
cherry, black oak, buckeye, chestnut oak, hemlock, hickory, Northern red oak, pitch pine, 
red maple, sugar maple, yellow birch and yellow poplar.  In the understory sourwood, 
dogwood, sassafras and striped maple are common.  Acquisition of this property is significant as 
part of the total management project being carried out in the mountain Eco region.  WRC 
ownership of the Dix Creek Tract will increase conservation ownership of properties in the 
immediate area such as the Cold Mountain Game Land, Pisgah National Forest, Southern 
Appalachian Highlands Conservancy lands, and various private holdings in the vicinity that are 
in conservation ownership or protected with conservation easements.  In a broader sense, WRC 
ownership of the tract will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape level by increasing 
connectivity of lands in conservation ownership.      
 
Management objectives will focus on expanding the management currently being implemented 
on Cold Mountain Game Land.  WRC ownership would ensure that important habitats are 
conserved 
 
Public recreational opportunities may include hunting, hiking, bird watching, photography, and 
general nature study.  Educational opportunities may exist as priority wildlife habitats are 
managed for or maintained.  Common wildlife species found on the tract include wild turkey, 
black bear, white-tailed deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse, and various songbirds, salamanders, 
and small mammals.  Priority species likely to occur on the tract are identified in the attached 
table. 
 

Additional Comments:  The Southern Appalachian Highlands Conservancy has made a 
commitment for the 25% matching funds needed in order to use PR funding for the purchase of 
this tract.  
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include establishing/maintaining 
property boundary 1.4 miles of property boundary ($8,596), erection of 2 gates to control 
vehicular traffic ($2,000) and development of 1 parking area ($1,000) for a total estimated cost 
of $11,596. 
 
No short-term revenue is projected from the tract 
 
Program Potential:   ☒ Game Land (Cold Mountain) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area

 ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal: state match rates):   
 Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 

30 of 30 



 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Cold Mountain GL)  Dix Creek Tract 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

5 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Plethodon ventralis Southern Zigzag Salamander SC

Desmognathus santeetlah Santeetlah Dusky Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Ambystoma talpoideum Mole Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker  

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher  

Corvus corax Common Raven  

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch  

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren  

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet  

Vermivora pinus Blue-winged Warbler SR

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica magnolia Magnolia Warbler SR

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler  

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera spinifera Eastern Spiny Softshell SC

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Dix Creek Tract (Haywood County) - Priority Species



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Rickman R idg
e

Lit tle
E

ast Fork Rd

Dix Cre ek RdPan

ther Branch Rd

Sorrells Creek Rd

C

rawford C reek Rd

Frazier Rd

Pacer Trl

Pa
rk

er
 R

d

Rickm an
R

id
ge

Ut

Sorr
ell C

reek

Len
oir

 Cree
k

Di
x C

ree
k

Panther Branch

Schoolhouse Branch

De
ep 

Ga
p C

ree
k

Chestnut Flat Creek

An
de

rso
n C

ree
k

Crawford Creek

Hend
ers

on 
Bra

nch

Long Branch

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

UtUt Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

UtUt

Ut

Ut

Ut

_̂

Haywood
County

Dix Creek Tract
Cold Mountain GL
Haywood County

161 Acres

/January 17, 2016 0 10.5 Miles

Pisgah National Forest GL

Cold Mountain GL

Dix Creek Tract

Sorrells Meadow Tract 
(Phase I August 2015)



D
ix Creek

R
d

Ut

Len
oir

 Cree
k

Dix
 Cr

eek

Schoolhouse Branch

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Haywood
County

Dix Creek Tract
Cold Mountain GL
Haywood County

161 Acres

/January 17, 2016 0 0.50.25 Miles

Pisgah National Forest GL

Cold Mountain GL

Dix Creek Tract



 

 

EXHIBIT E-2 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  July 14, 2016  

 

Tract:   Hampstead Bypass; Pender County, 81.6 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED 

funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from NC Department of Transportation 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  
 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  NA 

 2,932 

 0 



 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 

 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  July 14, 2016 
 
Tract Name:  Hampstead Bypass  
 
 PIN   Acreage  
 4204-11-5175-0 50.1 
 4204-21-9305-0 13.01 
 4204-31-3648-0 8.74 

4204-10-9252-0 4.55 
4204-20-6843-0 5.15 
 

Acreage:  81.55 
 
County:  Pender 
 
Estimated Value: NA - transfer from NCDOT 
                               
Property Owner or Representative:  Marissa Cox 
        Environmental Supervisor 

   PDEA – Natural Environment Section 
   North Carolina Department of Transportation 

 

Phone:  919 707 6153    office 
919 818 5901    mobile 
mrcox@ncdot.gov  

 
Address: 1020 Birch Ridge Drive 

    1598 Mail Service Center  
    Raleigh, NC 27699-1598 

              
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest  ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 

Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

    ☒ OTHER (explain):  Transfer from NCDOT 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Hampstead Bypass Tract is 
located on the eastern boundary of Holly Shelter Game Land, approximately 3.5 miles northeast 
of Hampstead, NC.  The combined tract encompasses 81.6 acres and is comprised of three 
purchased tracts; The Hampstead Commons, Pensco, and Ibis properties.  The properties were 
purchased by NCDOT to help offset impacts to the federally endangered red-cockaded  
 

mailto:mrcox@ncdot.gov


 

 

 
 
woodpecker (Picoides borealis) (RCW) and to control access to the Hampstead Bypass from the 
properties that compose this site. 
 
The ecological value of the Hampstead Bypass Tract is enhanced by the fact that it is adjacent to 
the Holly Shelter Game Lands (HSGL), a 63,000-acre tract owned by the State of North Carolina 
and managed by NCWRC for hunting, fishing, recreational, and ecological purposes.  
Incorporation of the Hampstead tract into HSGL will protect current RCW foraging habitat and 
provide for future habitat for two RCW clusters on the HSGL (Clusters 17 and 17A).  HSGL is 
part of the Mid-Atlantic Coastal Plain RCW Recovery Unit, as established by USFWS.  
Incorporation of the Properties into the HSGL will support the RCW management objectives of 
the WRC and the USFWS.   
 
The property has had all infrastructure removed and has been planted in longleaf pine and native 
warm seasons grasses by NCDOT.  The NCWRC will be responsible for the long-term 
management of this area for red-cockaded woodpeckers. 
 
Additional Comments: Five-year estimated stewardship expenditures will include establishment 
and maintenance of property boundary, establish of firebreaks, and prescribed burning and totals 
approximately $3,000 (see attached table).    
 
Program Potential: ☒ Game Land (Holly Shelter) ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area 

   ☐ Fishing Access Area  ☐ None 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
  
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

30 of 30 



 

 

 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Hampstead Bypass Tract (Pender County) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 
5 

     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 
5 

     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 
5 

     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 
5 

     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 
5 

     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 30 
     

 
 
  



 

 

 

Hampstead Bypass Tract

5- Year Estimated Stewardship Costs 

5-Year 5 Year

Description Quantity Unit Unit/Cost Total

Prescribe Burning  81.6 ac -Once every 3 

years (First burn in year 4-5) 81.6 ac 30.00$        2,448.00$      

Establish Firebreaks-.8 mi- Once every 3 

years (First burn in year 4-5) 0.8 mi 200.00$      160.00$          

Boundary Establishment 1.2 mi 135.00$      162.00$          

Boundary Maintenance- yr 4- 1.2 miles 1.2 mi 135.00$      162.00$          

Total 2,932.00$      

5-Year Anticipated Revenue

No income anticipated in years 1-5 -$                

Total -$                

 
 
 
 
 



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Onslow Bay

Trumpeter Swamp

Old Topsail Creek

£¤17

!(50

!(210

Topsail Sound

Banks Chan
nel

Virgi
nia Creek

Tops
ail

Sou
nd

Top
sai

l So
und

Topsail Sound

Topsail S
oun

d

Ban
ks C

han
nel

B anks C hann
el

Topsail Sound

Nixon Channel

Topsail Beach

Surf City

_̂

Hampstead Bypass Tract
Holly Shelter GL
Pender County

81.6 Acres

/June 27, 2016 0 1 20.5 Miles

Pender
County

Holly Shelter Game Land

Hampstead Bypass Tract



£¤17

Belve
dere Dr

SR
1676

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Hampstead Bypass Tract
Holly Shelter GL
Pender County

81.6 Acres

/June 27, 2016 0 500 1,000250 Feet

Pender
County

Holly Shelter Game Land

Hampstead Bypass Tract



1 
PPAB 2903856v7 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

between the 

NORTH CAROLINA WILDLIFE RESOURCES COMMISSION 

and the 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

for the 

MANAGEMENT AND OWNERSHIP  

OF THE HAMPSTEAD COMMONS, PENSCO AND IBIS PROPERTIES 

PENDER COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (Memorandum) is to set forth the terms 
between the North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT), and the North Carolina 
Wildlife Resources Commission (WRC) (collectively, the Parties and singularly, a Party), both 
agencies of the State of North Carolina, whereby WRC will accept ownership of and all management 
responsibilities for a portion of each of the properties known as the Hampstead Commons, Pensco 
and IBIS properties currently owned by NCDOT (collectively, the Properties) as depicted on the 
figure attached as Exhibit A.  The Hampstead Commons, Pensco and IBIS properties were acquired 
by NCDOT by the deeds recorded in the Pender County Registry at Deed Book 4306, Page 107, 
Deed Book 4308, Page 201, and Deed Book 4490, Page 149 and more particularly shown in Pender 
County Registry Map Book 58, Page 67, Map Book 58, Page 68 and Map Book 58, Page 69.   

The Hampstead Commons, Pensco and IBIS properties, which are adjacent to the proposed 
alignment of the Hampstead Bypass (STIP No. R-3300), were purchased by NCDOT to help offset 
impacts to the federally endangered red-cockaded woodpecker (Picoides borealis) (RCW) and to 
control access to the Hampstead Bypass from those properties.  NCDOT will submit this 
Memorandum with RCW Biological Assessment (BA) R-3300 and U-4751(Hampstead Bypass and 
Military Cutoff Road Extension), as requested by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service 
(USFWS) as part of the consultation process under Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act. 

The ecological value of the Properties is enhanced by the fact that they are adjacent to the 
Holly Shelter Game Lands (HSGL), a 75,000 acre tract owned by the State of North Carolina and 
managed by WRC for hunting, fishing, recreational, and ecological purposes.  Incorporation of the 
Properties into HSGL will protect current RCW foraging habitat and provide for future habitat for 
two RCW clusters on the HSGL (Clusters 17 and 17A).  HSGL is part of the Mid-Atlantic Coastal 



2 
PPAB 2903856v7 

Plain RCW Recovery Unit, as established by USFWS.  Incorporation of the Properties into the HSGL 
will support the RCW management objectives of the WRC and the USFWS.   

NCDOT is an agency of the State of North Carolina whose purpose includes the construction 
of transportation projects for public use and that has the authority to enter into agreements and 
acquire land and interests in land for the purpose of mitigating the environmental impacts of these 
transportation projects pursuant to, among other authority, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 136-18(12) and § 136-
18-19.  WRC is an agency of the State of North Carolina whose purpose is to manage, restore, 
develop, cultivate, conserve, protect, and regulate the wildlife resources of the State of North 
Carolina and that has the authority to enter into agreements and acquire land and interests in land in 
the overall best interests of the conservation of wildlife resources pursuant to, among other authority, 
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 113-305, § 113-306 and § 143-239 and §143-251. 

Current Conditions Background 

At the time of purchase by NCDOT in 2013, the Hampstead Commons property had already 
been partially cleared, and the remaining area is forested with mixed pines, including longleaf, 
ranging in age from 48 to 82 years old.  The Pensco property had been completely cleared.  The IBIS 
property, purchased by NCDOT in 2014, was mostly open with scattered longleaf pine and contained 
structures left over from a previous nursery business.   

As requested by WRC, NCDOT prepped the Hampstead Commons property for planting 
longleaf pine seedlings in the cleared area where suitable.  Silt fencing was removed.  NCDOT 
planted all Properties with longleaf pine seedlings and native grasses as requested by WRC. 

Structures and debris were removed from the IBIS property including buildings, power poles, 
irrigation pipes and poles, tarps, railroad ties, mailbox and metal pipes.  The septic tank was pumped 
out, crushed and filled with dirt.  The wells used for irrigation were closed out by a licensed well 
driller and abandoned.  Fencing was removed except near the US 17 entrance as requested by WRC.   

Terms  

NCDOT has surveyed, subdivided and platted the Hampstead Commons, Pensco and IBIS 
properties and recorded a plat (see Exhibit A).  On each of these properties, NCDOT will retain title 
to the parcels adjacent to US 17 for the purpose of construction of the Hampstead Bypass or any 
other transportation purpose.  NCDOT will convey, and WRC will accept, title in fee simple to the 
Properties.   The Parties agree to conduct the transfers of title after completion of the above-
referenced plantings.   

The parcels to which NCDOT will retain title (as depicted on Exhibit A) are coextensive with 
estimated construction limits for the Hampstead Bypass.  If in the sole discretion of NCDOT any 
additional land, beyond those parcels to be retained by NCDOT, is needed for construction of the 
Hampstead Bypass or other transportation projects, WRC agrees to make best efforts to obtain all 
necessary approvals to effectuate the return of title to all such lands to NCDOT.  WRC agrees that it 
will not seek compensation from NCDOT for the return of title to any such lands.  After completion 



3 
PPAB 2903856v7 

of the Hampstead Bypass, any surplus land of the Properties that NCDOT determines in its sole 
discretion is no longer needed for transportation purposes will be transferred to WRC, if feasible.  
NCDOT will pay the fees associated with transferring the Properties between NCDOT and WRC.   

 The principal contacts for this Memorandum are: 

 
 WRC:     Coastal Area Ecoregion Supervisor 

1720 Mail Service Center 
Raleigh, NC 27699 
Telephone:  919-707-0150 

 
 NCDOT:      Marissa Rodman Cox 

    Natural Environment Section 
    1598 Mail Service Center 
    Raleigh, NC  27699-1548 
    Telephone:  (919) 707-6015 
    Facsimile:    (919) 212-5785 
    Email:  mrcox@ncdot.gov 
 

This Memorandum is neither a fiscal nor a funds obligation document.  Any endeavor or 
transfer of anything of value involving reimbursement or contribution of funds between the parties to 
this Memorandum will be handled in accordance with applicable laws, regulations, and procedures 
including those for government procurement and printing.  Such endeavors will be outlined in 
separate agreements that shall be made in writing by representatives of the parties and shall be 
independently authorized by appropriate statutory authority.  This Memorandum does not provide 
such authority.  Specifically, this document does not establish authority for non-competitive award to 
the cooperator of any contract or other agreement.  Any contract or agreement for training or other 
services must fully comply with all requirements for competition. 

The designation the Parties as used herein shall include said Parties, their officials, managers, 
designees, heirs, successors, assigns, respective agents, administrators, contractors, grantees, 
devisees, licensees, subdivisions, and/or all other successors as their interests may appear, and shall 
include singular, plural, masculine, feminine or neuter as required by context. 

This Memorandum may not be changed, amended, corrected, or modified except in writing by 
mutual consent of all Parties prior to any changes being performed. 

Each Party hereby acknowledges that the individual executing this Memorandum on behalf of 
the respective Party is authorized to execute the document.  The Parties further acknowledge that they 
have read this Memorandum, conferred with their legal counsel, and fully understand the contents of 
this instrument.  A copy or facsimile copy of the signature of any Party shall be deemed an original 
with each fully executed copy of this Memorandum as binding as an original, and the Parties agree 



4 
PPAB 2903856v7 

that this Memorandum may be executed in counterparts, as duplicate originals, with facsimile 
signatures.   

All actions taken pursuant to this Memorandum shall be in accordance with applicable local, 
state and federal laws and regulations.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of 
Understanding as of the last written date below: 

 

State of North Carolina, 
acting through the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 
 

By:         Date ____________________ 

Its:           

 

State of North Carolina, 
acting through the North Carolina Department of Transportation  
 

By:         Date ____________________ 

Its:           

  



5 
PPAB 2903856v7 

EXHIBIT A 
  

[Attached Hereto] 
 



 

 

EXHIBIT E-3 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  July 14, 2016  

 

Tract:   Hodgson Tract; Davie & Iredell Counties, 108.5 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED 

funds):   
 
Accept donation of the property from the landowner  
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Date of Appraisal:  NA 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No ☒ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  
 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  NA 

 6,980 

 0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 
      

STEWARDSHIP 

        

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Keith 
Hodgson 

Contract survey to 
locate property 
boundary 5,584 ft. $1.25                           $6,980    

      

      

      

       

  Total       $6,980.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

       

      

      

      

      

REVENUE 

        

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

 Keith 
Hodgson  NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

        

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

      

      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Kip Hollifield/Kacy Cook 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  07/14/16 
 
Game Land:  Hunting Creek Swamp Waterfowl Refuge 
 
Tract Name:  Hodgson Tract 
 
Parcel ID#:   Davie County Portion:   4890617716 
  Iredell County Portion:  4890611801 
 
Acreage:   Davie County Portion:   58.332 
  Iredell County Portion:  50.168 
       108.50 acres 
County:  Davie and Iredell 
 
Tax Value:  Davie County Portion:   $168,450 
  Iredell County Portion:  $219,740 
  
Property Owner or Representative:   
 

Keith Hodgson 
7325 NC HIGHWAY 801 S. 
Mocksville, NC  27028-6738 
Phone:  336-284-2800 
 
c/o Crystal Cockman 
The Land Trust for Central North Carolina 
204 East Innes Street, Suite 280 
Salisbury, NC 28144 
Phone: 704-647-0302 
Email:  crystal@landtrustcnc.org 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest ☐ Moderate Interest     ☐ Low Interest ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF 

☒ OTHER (explain):  Mr. Hodgson wishes to donate both tracts to WRC 
 

 

 



 

 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The subject tract lies immediately 
adjacent to Hunting Creek Swamp Waterfowl Refuge (HCSWR) along the Davie/Iredell county 
line.  It is located upstream of HCSWR and provides important buffer to current holdings.  
HCSWR provides important nesting habitat to wood ducks and provides critical habitat to other 
waterfowl during fall and spring migrations.  It also provides important habitat for amphibians 
and other non-game species.  The majority (~87%) of the tract is forested, with oak forest and 
mixed hardwood forest predominant.  The northern third of the tract is floodplain forest. The 
remainder of the tract (~13%) is an agricultural field. These habitats provide excellent 
opportunities to manage for the following NCWAP species:  12 priority bird species including 
American kestrel, American woodcock, Eastern wood pee-wee, yellow-billed cuckoo, yellow-
bellied sapsucker (winter), hooded warbler and wood thrush; 4 priority mammal species 
including long-tailed weasel; five priority amphibian species including the three-lined 
salamander; and 8 priority reptile species including Eastern box turtle and ribbon snake.  The 
property has high value for providing needed buffer to HCSWR and also for scientific and 
educational purposes. The location and condition of this tract make it an ideal addition to 
HCSWR. 
 
Additional Comments:  Mr. Hodgson wishes to donate the entire property to WRC with the 
stipulation that it is managed for conservation purposes in perpetuity.  Mr. Hodgson wishes to 
have a conservation easement placed on the property to be held by The Land Trust for Central 
North Carolina as an additional safeguard that the property is not utilized for unintended 
purposes at any future point. 
 
There are no structures located on the property. 
 
Mr. Hodgson currently leases the field located on the property to a friend for agricultural 
purposes.  He wishes this agreement to continue for as long as the friend desires or until the 
friend passes. 
 
Preliminary estimates of five-year stewardship expenditures include surveying and marking 
5,584 feet of property boundary @ $1.25/foot.  Total estimate of five-year expenditures is 
$6,980.   
 
Program Potential:  ☐ Game Land   ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area  

☐ Fishing Access Area ☒ Waterfowl Refuge 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 

 

26 
 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Hodgson (Davie & Iredell counties) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

5 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

1 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  5 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

5 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

5 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 26 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander  

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

BIRDS

Lophodytes cucullatus Hooded Merganser  

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel  

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Lanius ludovicianus Loggerhead Shrike SC

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow  

Spiza americana Dickcissel  

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole  

MAMMALS

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew  

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat  

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis  

Neotoma magister Allegheny Woodrat SC

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse  

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Ophisaurus attenuatus Slender Glass Lizard SR

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Cemophora coccinea Scarlet Snake  

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake  

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake  

Hodgson Tract (Davie & Iredell Counties) - Priority Species



C
ou

nt
y 

Li
ne

 R
d

C
al

ah
al

n 
R

d

Guilford Rd

Fox Hunter Rd

Piney Grove Rd

M
oll Hodgson Rd

Doby Rd

Edwards RdHar
dy

R
d

Claude Ratledge Rd

Snow Beck 
Tr

Ut

Hu
nti

ng
 Cr

eek

Ut

Ut
Hunting Creek

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Hunting Creek

Ut

Hunt
ing

 Cr
eek

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

Ut

_̂
Iredell
County

Hodgson Tract
Davie/Iredell County 

108.5 Acres

/June 21, 2016 0 0.50.25 Miles

Hunting Creek Swamp Waterfowl Refuge

Hodgson Tract

Davie 
County



C
ou

nt
y 

Li
ne

 R
d

Moll Hodgson Rd

Piney Grove Rd

Ut

Hunting CreekUt

Ut

Ut

Ut

Hunting Creek

Ut

Ut

Hu
nti

ng
 Cr

eek

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC
911 Board

_̂
Iredell
County

Hodgson Tract
Davie/Iredell County 

108.5 Acres

/June 21, 2016 0 0.50.25 Miles

Hunting Creek Swamp Waterfowl Refuge

Hodgson Tract

Davie 
County



 

 

EXHIBIT E-4 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  February 11, 2016  

 

Tract:  Albert Ward Tract A Tyrrell County   2.75 Acres 
 Anne Ward Tract B Tyrrell County   5.14 Acres  
       7.89 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
          Tract A Tract B  Total 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant $ 273,750 $ 67,500 $ 341,250 
Wildlife Resources Commission   $ 103,750 $ 27,500 $ 131,250 
  
Total Cost:     $ 377,500  $ 95,000 $ 472,500 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No  ☐ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Tract Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

Ward A WRC Robert & Christopher Mashburn 3/17/2016 $ 365,000  
Ward B WRC Robert & Christopher Mashburn 3/17/2016 $   90,000 

 
 
Date of Appraisal:  See above. 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☒ Yes          ☐ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
 

  
Additional Comments:  Purchase price exceeds appraised value by approximately 3.5% for Tract A and 
5.5% for Tract B.  Exceeding appraised value is justified in this case due to the location, existing 
infrastructure, and overall suitability of the site as a depot location/facility for WRC’s Columbia Crew.  
 

$ 8,500 

NA 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Ward Tracts  

  
Install chain link 
security fence     150 ft. $25                           $3,750    

      

 

Connect to city of 
Columbia Sanitary 
Sewer System    1 Ea. $4,500 $4,500 

      

       

  Total       $11,596.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
     

      

      

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

  
Ward Tracts  NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

       
 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Tommy Hughes 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  February 11, 2016  
 
Tract Name:  Ward Property (Potential Columbia Depot Site) 
 
Acreage:  Two tracts totaling 7.89 acres. 
Tract A, 2.75 acres, Albert Benjamin Ward, Deed Book 236, Page 728 (MAPID: T074 18 001)     
Tract B, 5.14 acres, Ann B. Ward, Deed Book 236, Page728 (MAPID: T074 01 018) 
 
County:  Tyrrell 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 575,000, includes buildings, land, and some equipment in building (vehicle 
lift, air compressor and hydraulic hose manufacturing machine) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Chuck Owens Realty Inc., c/o Chuck Owens 
 

Phone:  252-796-3165 chuckqowens1958@gmail.com, corealty@coreality.net, www.corealty.net  
 
Address:  606 Martha Street, PO Box 66, Columbia, NC 27925 
   
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No 
Interest 
 
Grant Potential:  ☐ CWMTF    

    ☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman Robertson Grant, WRC Endowment Funds 
 

Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  The Ward Tract A is located in the 
Town of Columbia Extraterritorial Jurisdiction off of  SR1209 at 637 Road Street Extension, 
Columbia, N.C. (Tax ID#’s T074-18-001 & T074-01-018-LL, Deed book 236, page 728, Tract 
“A” in Plat Cabinet C, Slide 437). 
 
Tract A is approximately 2.75 acres in size and is located on SR 1209 with 569 feet of state road 
frontage and supports a well-built and well maintained steel commercial building that is 
currently used as an automotive repair facility.  The building contains approximately 5,000 
square feet, of which 4,150 is garage space and 850 is office/storage.  Specifically, the building 
has one main entrance office, one rear office, kitchen/breakroom, two bathrooms and significant 
overhead storage.  The building was constructed in 2007 and is in very good condition.  The 
structure exists within a federally-designated flood zone, but sits on an elevated pad that is 2.0  
 

mailto:chuckqowens1958@gmail.com
mailto:corealty@coreality.net
http://www.corealty.net/


 

 

 
 
 
feet above floodplain elevation.  Although the Columbia area was heavily impacted by high 
water during Hurricane Irene in August 2011, the building did not flood.   
 
In addition, there is an adjacent property (Tract B) for sale which is located directly behind and 
adjacent to Tract A.  Tract B contains 5.14 acres and includes a 50 x 50 foot steel commercial 
building with electrical service that is used for storage.  This building was also built in 2007 and 
is constructed on an elevated pad at the same elevation as the building on Tract A.  The Tract B 
building is also in very good condition.  Tract B would offer additional dry storage for 
equipment and would provide a layout yard for storage of outside equipment, large vehicles and 
materials (gravel, stone, culvert pipe, etc.). 
 
Additional Comments: If purchased, these two tracts provide an excellent opportunity to 
purchase buildings with outstanding floor plans and a site layout yard that is move-in ready and 
ideally suited for housing the Columbia Land Management Crew.  Currently, the Columbia crew 
works in 10 foot x 10 foot office within a NCDOT maintenance facility, with little space to store 
equipment, materials and supplies.  For comparison, the current cost to purchase land and 
construct new buildings typical of WRC depot facilities is estimated at $750,000 - $1,000,000. 
 
Program Potential:   ☐ Game Land   ☐ Wildlife Conservation Area  
                         ☐ Fishing Access Area     ☒ Management Depot 
 
Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  Pittman-
Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 
 
Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 
 
  

N/A 



 

 

 
WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 

  
Tract Name (Focal Area)  Ward Property-Tyrell (Potential Management Depot Site) 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

NA 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

NA 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  NA 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already protected 

for conservation purposes and provides connectivity to priority 
Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

NA 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation efforts, 
corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

NA 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; or 
significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

NA 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

NA 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE NA 
     

 
  



 

 

 

 
  



 

 

 
. 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Office Area – Tract A 

Front View of Building – Tract A 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

Small Separate Office – Tract A 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Kitchen/Break Area – Tract A 

Office Bathroom ADA Compliant – Tract A 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Shop – Tract A 

10,000 Lb. Lift – Tract A 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Air Compressor – Tract A 
 

Overhead Air Reels – Tract A 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Stairway to Overhead Storage – Tract A 

Overhead Storage Area – Tract A 



 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Bunk Area in Overhead Storage – Tract A 

Rear View of Building – Tract A 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Heat Pump that Cools/Heats Office – Tract A 

Front View of 50x50 Building - Tract B 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

Layout Yard - Tract B 



!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

!y

Scuppernong River

£¤64

!(94

!(94

State Road 1110

Bo
dw

el
l R

d

State Road 1111  

State
Road

1209

State Road
11

12
Elm

 St

Bridge St

Fonsoe St

C
em

en

ter
y Rd

Green St

Martha St

Railroad St

W
ater S

t

Elementary School Rd

R
oa

d 
St

St
at

e 
Ro

ad
 1

22
8 

 

Hicks St

Railroad St

ALBEMARLE SOUND

Columbia
_̂

Ward Tracts (A and B)
Potential Columbia Depot SIte

Tyrrell County
7.89 Acres

/January 24, 2016 0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Tyrrell
County

Ward Tracts A & B (Potential Columbia Depot Site)

_̂

_̂

_̂

_̂ Existing Columbia Depot (NCDOT Facility)



Cem
en

te
ry

 R
d

St
at

e 
R

oa
d 

12
09

  

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

_̂

Ward Tracts (A and B)
Potential Columbia Depot SIte

Tyrrell County
7.89 Acres

/January 24, 2016 0 250 500125 Feet

Tyrrell
County

Ward Tracts A & B (Potential Columbia Depot Site)

Tract A

Tract B



 

 

EXHIBIT E-5 
July 14, 2016 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form  
 

-PHASE II:  FINAL ACQUISITION DETAILS- 

 
WRC Action/Approval to Pursue (Date):  Silvers Tract - February 27, 2014 

Williams Tract -July 14, 2016  

 
Tract:   Williams-Silvers; Haywood County, 783 Acres 
 

Acquisition Plan (specify total project cost, each source, and amount of OBLIGATED funds):   
 
Pitman Robertson Land Acquisition Grant  $ 260,000 
 
Total Cost:      $ 260,000 ($ 332/Acre) 
 
Based on Appraisal:  ☐ Yes          ☐ No  ☒ NA 

If Yes, Name of Appraiser:   
 

Requested by: Appraiser Effective Date Appraised Value 

 
*TCF 

 
Unknown.  

 
Unknown 

 
$ 2.4 mil ($ 3,065/Acre) 

 
 *The Conservation Fund 

 

Date of Appraisal:  Unknown 

Appraisal Handled by State Property Office:  ☐ Yes          ☒ No ☐ NA 

Acquisition Plan Includes Bargain Sale: ☐ Yes  ☒ No 
If Yes, Explain Details:   
 
Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Five Year Stewardship Costs & Revenue Projection Evaluation (attach worksheet)   

 Five Year Estimate of Total Stewardship Expenditures:   $:  

 Five Year Estimate of Total Projected Revenue:  $:  
  

Additional Comments:  Purchase price is approximately 89% less than appraised value, which satisfies 
the PR requirement for 25% non-federal matching funds.  
 

 $127,500 

 $0 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET 

Five Year Stewardship Costs and Revenue Projections  

(Five Years Post Acquisition) 

      STEWARDSHIP 

  
    

  

  Estimated Stewardship Expenditures  

Tract Name Activity Quantity Unit  Unit Cost   Total Cost  

Williams-
Silvers 

  
Boundary 
Establishment 
(Contract Survey) 42,000 ft. $1.25 

                          
$52,500    

      

 
Enhance & maintain 
access road 3 mi $25,000 $75,000 

      

       

  Total       $127,500.00 

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

  
     

      

     
 

      

      REVENUE 

  
    

  

  Estimated Revenue Projections  

Tract Name Source Quantity Unit  Unit Revenue   Total Revenue  

  
Williams-
Silvers  NA NA NA NA  $                           -    

  
    

  

  Total        $                           -    

Insert additional rows in table as needed 

      

       
 



 

 

 
 

 

North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission 

Land Acquisition Investigation Form 
 

-PHASE I:  INITIAL INVESTIGATION- 

 
WRC Staff Contact:  Gordon Warburton, David Stewart, Mike Carraway 

 

Date First Presented to WRC:  February 27, 2014  
 
Tract Name:  Silvers Tract 
 
Acreage:  728  
 
County:  Haywood 
 
Estimated Value:  $ 1,800,000 Staff Estimate (approximately $ 2,473/acre) 
 
Property Owner or Representative:  Robert Williams 
 
Phone:  (828) 926-1177 
 
Address:  157 Indian Creek Rd., Maggie Valley NC 28751 
 
Status:  ☒ High Interest  ☐ Moderate Interest ☐ Low Interest  ☐ No Interest 
 
Grant Potential: ☐ Clean Water Management Trust Fund 

☒ OTHER (explain):  Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75%) and WRC  
    funds (25%) 

 
Resources Assessment and Biological Benefits (brief):  WRC acquisition of this tract will compliment 
conservation ownership of other protected properties in the immediate area such as the Great Smokey 
Mountains National Park (adjacent), Pisgah and Nantahala National Forests and the Cherokee Indian 
Reservation.  In a broader sense, WRC acquisition will help ensure ecosystem integrity at the landscape 
scale by increasing connectivity of lands in conservation ownership. 
 
Management objectives will focus on continuing and/or expanding elk monitoring and research in 
Western NC.  WRC ownership will ensure that critical elk habitat is conserved, and will also provide 
areas for WRC staff to conduct elk research and monitoring projects.  WRC ownership will also provide 
opportunities to create early successional habitat, which is also a priority wildlife habitat. 
 
The entire tract is forested in Appalachian oak and Appalachian cove forests.  Commons wildlife species 
found on the tract include wild turkey, black bear, white-tailed deer, gray squirrel, ruffed grouse, as well 
as various songbirds, salamanders and small mammals.   
 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
Additional Comments:  The Silvers Tract is bordered on the north by the Great Smoky Mountains 
National Park.  Currently, the North Carolina Wildlife Resources Commission does not have any public 
lands inhabited by elk that can be managed for elk.  One of the major obstacles to elk management in 
North Carolina (outside of the Great Smoky Mountains National Park) is finding public lands that are 
suitable for development as elk habitat and for eventual use as a public hunting area for elk if a hunting 
season is established at some point in the future. There are a few areas on National Forest lands that are 
currently used by elk (occasionally), but those lands cannot be managed for elk under the current 
management restrictions of the US Forest Service. 
 
The goal of this purchase is to acquire a tract of public land that already has elk on it (and in close 
proximity to it) that can be managed as elk habitat.  Because of the lack of public access (unless 
additional land is purchased to provide public access) the property will not be suitable as a traditional 
game land or as an elk viewing area.  It will be managed almost exclusively as an elk habitat management 
area.  Funding for the property will need to come from sources that do not restrict development of elk 
habitat. 
 
The Silvers Tract does have potential for elk habitat development.  There are many logging roads 
that can be seeded with elk forage grasses and there are numerous logging decks (10+) that can be 
developed into small wildlife openings, ranging in size from 0.5 acres to 2 acres.  The property is very 
steep and there does not appear to be any potential for developing large fields for elk habitat (5-10 acres).   
 
The property under consideration is not adjacent to any public roads.  The current owner does own 
additional land that can provide administrative access to the property and has indicated his willingness to 
include access rights as part of a sale.  However, public access to the property would have to be acquired 
through the purchase of additional parcels.   
 
Program Potential:  ☐ Game Land ☒ Wildlife Conservation Area ☐ Fishing Access Area 
 

Potential Source(s) of Stewardship Funds (indicate federal:state match rates):  
Pittman-Robertson Federal Assistance Grant (75% federal: 25% state) 
 
Relative Priority Evaluation Score (attach worksheet):   
 
Recommendation:  ☒ Pursue Acquisition ☐ Defer ☐ Do not Pursue Acquisition 

 

Map Attached:  ☒ Yes  ☐ No 

21 of 30 
 



 

 

 
 

WORKSHEET  

Relative Priority Evaluation for Conservation Lands 
  
Tract Name   Silvers Tract – Haywood County 
     
Criterion    Score (1-5) 
    5=Excellent   1=Poor 
     
1. Augments existing protected lands by addressing an 

inholding or adjacent tract, provides key access,  
buffers or connects existing WRC-managed lands. 

 
 

3 
     
2. Represents good hunting, fishing, wildlife viewing,  

and other resource-based recreational opportunities. 
 

3 
     
3. No conflicting surrounding land uses.  2 
     
4. Serves as a wildlife corridor between areas already 

protected for conservation purposes and provides 
connectivity to priority Wildlife Action Plan habitats. 

 
 

4 
     
5. Augments land conservation efforts on a landscape scale  

by providing nuclei (“anchors”) for regional conservation 
efforts, corridors, key linkages between conservation areas,  
or keystone tracts. 

 
 
 

5 
     
6. Fills a need identified by the Wildlife Action Plan, such 

as critical, rare or unique habitats; natural heritage elements; 
or significant aquatic/terrestrial resources. 

 
 

4 
     
7. Is this an area in which we would like to establish a  

new game land, wildlife conservation area, or fishing access? 
 

 Yes 
     
8. Is it large enough to be a new game land, and if not,  

are there possibilities for expansion (goal 3,000- 
5,000 acre minimum)? 

 
 

 NA 
   
9. Is area adequate for fishing access development with suitable 

parking, and if not, are there possibilities for expansion? 
 

 NA 
  

 
 

   
  TOTAL SCORE 21 
     
     

 



 SCIENTIFIC NAME COMMON NAME FED LISTED STATE LISTED

AMPHIBIANS

Plethodon glutinosus Slimy Salamander

Plethodon jordani Red-cheeked Salamander

Plethodon ventralis Southern Zigzag Salamander SC

Desmognathus imitator Imitator Salamander

Desmognathus santeetlah Santeetlah Dusky Salamander SR

Desmognathus wrighti Pygmy Salamander SR

Hemidactylium scutatum Four-toed Salamander SC

Necturus maculosus Mudpuppy SC

Cryptobranchus alleganiensis Hellbender SC

BIRDS

Accipiter striatus Sharp-shinned Hawk SR

Falco sparverius American Kestrel

Falco peregrinus Peregrine Falcon E

Coccyzus erythropthalmus Black-billed Cuckoo SR

Tyto alba Barn Owl SR

Sphyrapicus varius Yellow-bellied Sapsucker

Contopus cooperi Olive-sided Flycatcher

Empidonax alnorum Alder Flycatcher SR

Empidonax minimus Least Flycatcher

Corvus corax Common Raven

Sitta canadensis Red-breasted Nuthatch

Certhia americana Brown Creeper SC

Troglodytes troglodytes Winter Wren

Regulus satrapa Golden-crowned Kinglet

Vermivora chrysoptera Golden-winged Warbler SC

Dendroica cerulea Cerulean Warbler SC

Limnothlypis swainsonii Swainson's Warbler

Ammodramus savannarum Grasshopper Sparrow

Icterus galbula Baltimore Oriole

MAMMALS

Sorex dispar Long-tailed Shrew SC

Sorex hoyi Pygmy Shrew

Corynorhinus rafinesquii Rafinesque's Big-eared Bat T

Lasiurus cinereus Hoary Bat

Lasiurus seminolus Seminole Bat

Myotis septentrionalis Northern Myotis

Myotis leibii Eastern Small-footed Myotis SC

Sylvilagus obscurus Appalachian Cottontail SR-G

Zapus hudsonius Meadow Jumping Mouse

Mustela nivalis Least Weasel SR-G

Spilogale putorius Eastern Spotted Skunk

REPTILES

Glyptemys muhlenbergii Bog Turtle LT, SAT T

Apalone spinifera spinifera Eastern Spiny Softshell SC

Eumeces anthracinus Coal Skink SR

Lampropeltis triangulum elapsoides Scarlet Kingsnake

Lampropeltis triangulum triangulum Eastern Milk Snake

Virginia valeriae Smooth Earth Snake

Williams-Silvers Tract (Haywood County) - Priority Species



Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Blue Ridge Parkway

Blue Ridge Parkway

Wycle Fork

Fie
 Cr

ee
k

Ind
ian

 Cr
ee

k

Jonathans Creek

Ca
rp

en
ter

 B
ran

ch

De
ep

 G
ap

 B
ran

ch

Long Branch

Wolf Laurel Branch
£¤19

Fi
e

To
p

R
d

Black Camp Gap RdSky Dr Fr
an

k Mehaffe
y R d

Pl
es

s
Un

de
rw

oo
d

Rd

Sheepback Mountain
Rd

K nob Dr

Blue Ridge Pky Billy
D

r

Bodale
D

r

Caldwell D
r

Bre

nn
an

Rd

Cabin Fever Tr

Dream
w

eaver W
ay

Se
tzer Cove Rd

Hoghea

vi
n

Hg
ts

State Road 1302  

Va

lley Vis ta Rd

Low Gap Rd

Hannah Hill Rd

Brown Ridge Rd

Murphy Dr

R
en

a 
D

r

Cider Ridge  

Sh
ee

pb
ac

k
M

ou
nt

ai
n

R
d

Bl
ue

R
id

ge
Pk

y

Sky Dr

M
ag

gi
e 

Va
lle

y

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40Williams-Silvers Tracts
Haywood County

783 Acres

/June 25, 2016
0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Haywood
County

Sheepback Mtn Tract
(Closed March 2016)

Mashie Stomp Tract (Phase II April 2016)

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Wycle Fork Tract (Phase II April 2016)

Williams Tract 



Great Smoky Mountains National Park

Blue Ridge Parkway

Blue Ridge Parkway

Wycle Fork

Fie
 Cr

ee
k

Ind
ian

 Cr
ee

k

Jonathans Creek

Ca
rp

en
ter

 B
ran

ch

De
ep

 G
ap

 B
ran

ch

Long Branch

Wolf Laurel Branch
£¤19

Fi
e

To
p

R
d

Black Camp Gap RdSky Dr Fr
an

k Mehaffe
y R d

Pl
es

s
Un

de
rw

oo
d

Rd

Sheepback Mountain
Rd

K nob Dr

Blue Ridge Pky Billy
D

r

Bodale
D

r

Caldwell D
r

Bre

nn
an

Rd

Cabin Fever Tr

Dream
w

eaver W
ay

Se
tzer Cove Rd

Hoghea

vi
n

Hg
ts

State Road 1302  

Va

lley Vis ta Rd

Low Gap Rd

Hannah Hill Rd

Brown Ridge Rd

Murphy Dr

R
en

a 
D

r

Cider Ridge  

Sh
ee

pb
ac

k
M

ou
nt

ai
n

R
d

Bl
ue

R
id

ge
Pk

y

Sky Dr

M
ag

gi
e 

Va
lle

y

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

¬«215

¬«209

¬«110

£¤276

£¤19

£¤23

£¤74£¤276

§̈¦40Williams-Silvers Tracts
Haywood County

783 Acres

/June 25, 2016
0 0.5 10.25 Miles

Haywood
County

Sheepback Mtn Tract
(Closed March 2016)

Mashie Stomp Tract (Phase II April 2016)

_̂

Silvers Tract (Phase I Feb. 2014)

Wycle Fork Tract (Phase II April 2016)

Williams Tract 


























	Agenda
	Exhibit A Minutes
	Exhibit B Financial Report
	Exhibit C-1 Permanent Rule-making for 15A NCAC 10B .0106
	Exhibit C-2 Fiscal Note for Proposed WM Rule Amendment for the WRC
	Exhibit D-1 Phase I Cunningham Tract Needmore GL Swain Co
	Exhibit D-1 Map

	Exhibit D-2 Phase I Hammond Tract Randolph Co
	Exhibit D-2 Map

	Exhibit D-3 Phase I Juniper Bay LLC Tract Brunswick County
	Exhibit D-3 Map

	Exhibit D-4 Phase I Melton Tract McDowell Co
	Exhibit D-4 Map

	Exhibit D-5 Phase I Shoe Heel Tract Johnston Co
	Exhibit D-5 Map

	Exhibit D-6 Phase I Wood Tract Jackson Co
	Exhibit D-6 Map

	Exhibit E-1 Phase 2 Dix Creek Tract Haywood Co
	Exhibit E-1 Map

	Exhibit E-2 Phase 2 Hampstead Bypass Pender Co
	Exhibit E-2 Map

	Exhibit E-3 Phase 2 Hodgson Track Davie & Iredell Co
	Exhibit E-3 Map

	Exhibit E-4 Phase 2 Albert Ward Tract A Anne Ward Tract B Tyrell Co
	Exhibit E-4 Map

	Exhibit E-5 Phase 2 Williams-Silvers Tract Haywood Co
	Exhibit E-5 Map

	Exhibit F Proposed Temporary Rulemaking: Description of No Wake Zone Taylor's Creek
	Exhibit G Proposed Final Adoption Amendment to 15A NCAC 10F .0366



